
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
SPECIAL MEETING 

 
Monday, March 29, 2010 – 8:30 a.m. 

Board Room, Civic Center, 7200 S. Huron River Drive,  
Ypsilanti Township 

 
AGENDA 

 
A Special Meeting of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees has been 
called by Supervisor Brenda Stumbo to consider the following items: 
 
 

1) Minutes of the March 16, 2010 Work Session and Regular Meeting 
 

2) Resolution No. 2010-04, Lakeside Park Grant 
 

3) Nuisance Abatement 
 
A. Request authorization to initiate legal action if necessary, in Washtenaw 

County Circuit Court to abate public nuisance for the property located at 138, 
138 ½ and 140 S. Harris 

 
B. Request authorization to initiate legal action, if necessary, in Washtenaw 

County Circuit Court to abate public nuisance created by the zoning violation 
for the property located at 1095 E. Michigan Avenue 

 
C. Request authorization to initiate legal action, if necessary, in Washtenaw 

County Circuit Court to abate public nuisances for the property located at 
1370 E. Michigan Avenue 

 
4) Request to print and mail postcard to Township residents regarding changes in 

brush and recycling services, at a cost not to exceed $4,500, to be charged to 
line item #226-226-000-900-000 
 

5) 2010 rates for Green Oaks Golf Course 
 

6) Proclamation in honor of Sexual Assault Awareness Month 
 

 
3/25/10 

  

Supervisor’s Office 
 
 

7200 S. Huron River Drive 
Ypsilanti, MI  48197 

Phone:  (734) 481-0617 
Fax:  (734) 484-0002 

www.ytown.org 



     CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE  MARCH 16, 2010 WORK SESSION 

 
PROPOSED 

 
Supervisor Brenda L. Stumbo called the meeting to order at approximately 6:00 p.m. in 
the Ypsilanti Township Civic Center Board Room, 7200 S. Huron River Drive, Ypsilanti 
Township.  
 
 
Members Present: Supervisor Brenda L. Stumbo, Clerk Karen Lovejoy Roe, 

Treasurer Larry Doe, Trustees Jean Hall Currie and Mike 
Martin  

 
Members Absent: Trustees Stan Eldridge and Dee Sizemore 
 
Legal Counsel: Wm. Douglas Winters 
 
 
REVIEW AGENDA 
 
The following agenda items were reviewed: 
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING    
 
A.  LAKESIDE PARK IMPROVEMENTS GRANT APPLICATION 
 
Art Serafinski, Recreation Director explained the public hearing was a requirement of 
the grant application that would be submitted to the Department of Natural Resources 
Trust Fund.  He provided an overview of the Lakeside Park improvements, as well as 
the grant application process and requirements. The presentation included maps, 
conceptual plans and cost estimates. Mr. Serafinski stated the grant application was in 
collaboration with Eastern Michigan University, Washtenaw County Parks and 
Recreation, Saline Rowing Club and Ypsilanti Township. He introduced Brian Barrick, 
planner with Beckett and Raeder, hired by Eastern Michigan University to make the 
grant application. Mr. Serafinski explained the grant included a boathouse and park 
renovations with fishing docks, path development, a shelter and other amenities. He 
said the Township had a verbal commitment from Eastern Michigan University for 
$450,000, Washtenaw County Parks and Recreation (WCPR) for $250,000 and the 
Saline Rowing Club for $50,000. WCPR had an interest because the park tied into the 
County’s Border-to-Border Trails Plan and it would bring recreational rowing 
opportunities to our community. Mr. Serafinski explained the funding agencies were not 
scheduled to meeting until after the April 1, 2010 deadline and approval should be 
contingent upon receiving formal commitments. The public hearing was a grant 
application requirement and it would be necessary for the Board to approve a resolution 
prior to the deadline. Mr. Serafinski explained that Ypsilanti Township was required to 
apply for the grant because the Township was the only entity that had a Master Plan for 
Lakeside Park. He made it clear that all legal agreements would be in place to assure 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MARCH 16, 2010 WORK SESSION MINUTES 
PAGE 2 
 
the Township was not responsible for possible cost overruns or any other unexpected 
financial obligations. He further explained the only Township obligation would be the 
land lease and general park maintenance. EMU would be responsible for the dock 
maintenance, rowing facilities and boathouse. He stressed adjustments could be made 
to the grant between April 1, 2010 and the end of the year. The grant would not be 
awarded until after January 1, 2011.   
 
Brian Barrick explained the different concepts of the boathouse and the financial charts. 
He reviewed two different scopes for the grant and the risk of not being awarded the 
grant  if a smaller project was submitted. 
 
Trustee Martin asked about the project phasing, if all expenses were covered and the 
Township’s financial commitment. 
  
Mr. Serafinski explained the grant process and how the project would be rated. He 
explained there was time in the grant process to secure financial obligations and the 
Township could withdraw if commitments were not received.  
 
Supervisor Stumbo and Treasurer Doe both indicated they learned the Township would 
not be penalized on future grant projects if the grant was not received. 
 
Trustee Currie asked about hidden costs.  
 
Mr. Serafinski stressed there were no hidden costs. There would be an agreement with 
EMU to insure the Township was not obligated to maintain the boathouse or rowing 
facilities.   
 
Supervisor Stumbo explained the agreement would be similar to the Township 
agreement with Eastern Michigan University regarding our property where the Eagle 
Crest Golf Course and the Marriott were located.  
 
Clerk Lovejoy Roe stated a special meeting would need to be scheduled before April 1, 
2010 to approve the resolution. She also stated all legal agreements protecting the 
Township would be in place prior to accepting the grant.  
 
Ms. Kaiser, Township Resident was concerned about the Township being pulled into a 
project before being assured the Township would not be left solely responsible for the 
cost. 
 
Supervisor Stumbo stated the partnership could work the same as it did for the Golf 
Course project at Eagle Crest. She stated they would make sure the Township was 
protected before the grant was accepted.  
 
Larry Johnson, Park Commissioner commented that projects had been coming in under 
projected cost because of the economic environment.   
 
Supervisor Stumbo questioned if the design of the building was conceptual or actual.   
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MARCH 16, 2010 WORK SESSION MINUTES 
PAGE 3 
 
Mr. Serafinski stressed this plan was only conceptual and could be changed. He 
reiterated the focus was on applying for the grant. 
 
 
ADDITIONAL AGENDA ITEM - OTHER BUSINESS 
 
Clerk Lovejoy Roe said she received a last minute request to place 724 N. Ford Blvd. 
on the agenda under Other Business due to the deplorable conditions of the property. 
Copies of the report and photos were distributed to Board Members. 
 
Bill Elling, Ordinance Officer explained a call from Washtenaw County Community 
Mental Health to inspect the home at 724 N. Ford Blvd. prompted the request. He 
reported the foundation was cracked, there were no toilet facilities and the floors were 
rotted. Mr. Elling asked the Board to review the photos and authorize Circuit Court 
action to demolish the home.  
 
Mike Radzik, Office of Community Standards Director said the demolition should be 
eligible for NSP funds.   
 
The Board agreed to add this item under other business.  
 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
2. 2nd READING RESOLUTION NO. 2010-03, PROPOSED ORDINANCE NO. 2010-

403 AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 2009-391 – WAIVING, FOR A LIMITED TIME, 
THE CHARGES REQUIRED PURSUANT TO ARTICLES II AND III OF 
CHAPTER 62 “UTILITIES” OF THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
CODE OF ORDINANCES, AS AMENDED, IN ORDER TO PROVIDE ECONOMIC 
STIMULUS,  ENCOURAGE DEVELOPMENT AND CREATE JOB 
OPPORTUNITIES WITHIN THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 

 
Supervisor Stumbo stated the Township would like to continue waiving the charges to 
help with economic development for another year.   
 
Clerk Lovejoy Roe asked if the Township parks were eligible under the ordinance. 
 
Supervisor Stumbo said the ordinance required a building permit and the intent of the 
ordinance was to encourage new development, not provide the services to vacant land.   
 
Mr. Serafinski asked if a building permit was pulled for one of the parks, would the 
benefit charge be waived under this ordinance.  
 
Supervisor Stumbo replied that was the intent of the ordinance.   
 
 
 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MARCH 16, 2010 WORK SESSION MINUTES 
PAGE 4 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
1. REQUEST AUTHORIZATION TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH DTE TO 

TRACK AND MONITOR YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP’S REMAINING 2009 
RENEWABLE ENERGY CREDITS FOR UP TO FIVE YEARS AND AUTHORIZE 
SIGNING OF THE AGREEMENT 

 
Trustee Martin said it was his understanding that DTE would pay more for the energy 
credits than was customary. 
 
Jeff Allen, Residential Services Director stated that was correct but clarified the agenda 
item was to allow DTE to track and monitor the energy credits for the next five years. 
This required process would allow the Township to sell the credits later.  
 
Trustee Martin questioned if the energy credits were not sold to DTE, would there be a 
charge for tracking and monitoring the credits. 
 
Mr. Allen replied there would be a charge and the cost would be calculated at the time 
of the sale. 
 
2. REQUEST AUTHORIZATION TO ENTER INTO QUALIFIED VOTER FILE’S 

ELECTRONIC POLL BOOK PROJECT GRANT AGREEMENT WITH MICHIGAN 
DEPARTMENT OF STATE 

 
Clerk Lovejoy Roe explained the Electronic Poll Book Project Grant would provide 
laptops and all necessary equipment for all twenty precincts, at no cost to the Township. 
She stated the Clerk’s that piloted the project were very happy with the results and 
highly recommended their use.  If the approved, the Clerk’s office staff would attend an 
informational training in Lansing.  
 
3. REQUEST AUTHORIZATION TO INITIATE LEGAL ACTION IF NECESSARY, IN 

WASHTENAW COUNTY CIRCUIT COURT TO ABATE PUBLIC NUISANCE FOR 
THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 7281 TEXTILE ROAD 

 
Michael Radzik, Director of Community Standards Department provided a brief 
overview of the property and said it was necessary to seek court action to abate the 
nuisance.   
 
ADJOURNMENT  
 
The meeting adjourned at approximately 6:56 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Brenda L. Stumbo, Supervisor Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk  
Charter Township of Ypsilanti        Charter Township of Ypsilanti     



 
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 

MINUTES OF THE  MARCH 16, 2010 REGULAR MEETING 
 

PROPOSED 
 

The meeting was called to order by Supervisor Brenda L. Stumbo at approximately  
7:00 p.m. in the Ypsilanti Township Civic Center Board Room, 7200 S. Huron River 
Drive, Ypsilanti Township. The Pledge of Allegiance was recited and a moment of silent 
prayer was observed. 
 
Members Present: Supervisor Brenda L. Stumbo, Clerk Karen Lovejoy Roe, 

Treasurer Larry Doe, Trustees Jean Hall Currie and Mike 
Martin 

 
Members Absent:  Trustees Stan Eldridge and Dee Sizemore 
 
Legal Counsel:  Wm. Douglas Winters  
 
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 
A. LAKESIDE PARK IMPROVEMENTS GRANT APPLICATION 
 
The public hearing was opened at approximately 7:01 p.m.  
 
Art Serafinski, Director of Parks and Recreation for Ypsilanti Township provided a brief 
overview of the grant application for improvements to Lakeside Park located on Ford 
Lake.  He explained the grant application was in collaboration with Eastern Michigan 
University, Washtenaw County Parks and Recreation, Saline Rowing Club and Ypsilanti 
Township.  Mr. Serafinski introduced Brian Barrick, planner with Beckett and Raeder, 
hired by Eastern Michigan University to prepare the grant application and conceptual 
design for the park and the boathouse.   
 
Brian Barrick provided a presentation of the proposed improvements to Lakeside Park. 
He explained the improvements were an adaptation of the original Lakeside Park plan 
included in the five-year Master Plan for Ypsilanti Township Parks and Recreation with 
the added amenities of the boathouse, rowing facilities. The revised Phase I plan 
included a boathouse with parking, outdoor classroom, picnic shelter, pathways, docks, 
new park entrance, playground, playfields and a stormwater management system. The 
dock facilities currently owned by Eastern Michigan would be utilized as a part of the 
park development along with some small additions. Mr. Barrick indicated that Phase I of 
the Lakeside Park Improvements contained a variety of recreational opportunities that 
included walking trails that connected to the Washtenaw County Border-to-Border trail 
system, scenic overlooks and interpretative educational opportunities.  He explained the 
grant application contained both active and passive recreation amenities and would be 
funded through the Department of Natural Resources (DNR).   
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MARCH 16, 2010 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
PAGE 2 
 
 
Mr. Serafinski said the first step was the grant application and the design would be 
completed at a later date. He explained grant criteria that would rate high, included 
universal accessibility which far surpassed ADA minimum requirements and the 
proposed park improvements would achieve universal accessibility.  He said the plan 
envisioned programming for all abilities. Mr. Serafinski indicated the grant proposal 
would open new and great recreational opportunities for the entire community to 
achieve an active lifestyle.  He also indicated the Township would be able to offer 
rowing opportunities to the community and potentially to the public schools for 
participation in rowing activities not currently available.  
 
Lyle Tindall, Ypsilanti Township resident asked about the time frame for project 
completion.   
 
Mr. Serafinski explained the grant application would be reviewed and rated after the 
April 1, 2010 deadline. Once rated, the grant would be returned to the Township with 
the opportunity to make adjustments to attain a higher rating before returning the 
application to the DNR. Mr. Serafinski said notification would be between November 
and January and if awarded the grant, the Township would have three years to 
complete the project.   
 
Ken Goetz, Ypsilanti Township resident asked if the park would be used to host crew 
races.  
 
 Mr. Serafinski responded that the Township had hosted races for the past 6-8 years. 
He said in those instances, the floatable docks would be moved to Ford Lake Park. He 
said Ford Lake Park has worked great for Regattas. He said the Township had hosted a 
race with four major colleges, including the University of Michigan and the Ford Lake 
Park facilities handled it very nicely.   
 
Trustee Martin expressed support for the concept and the collaborative efforts but was 
concerned about estimates in the grant presentation.  
 
 Mr. Serafinski explained the grant process was to submit a conceptual design. If 
awarded the grant, detailed design would be done and the project would be sent out for 
bids. He stated the bids would contain exact numbers regarding cost.  He also indicated 
it would be necessary to work out legal agreements to protect the Township’s interest 
and to establish the financial arrangements between the parties.   
 
Mr. Barrick stated the numbers in the presentation were based on real construction 
projections.   
 
Supervisor Stumbo stated the Township has previously done a joint grant application 
with Eastern Michigan University (EMU) for Eagle Crest Golf Course and clubhouse.  
She said  these facilities were built on Township land and the Township had granted a 
99-year lease to EMU. She stressed there were no additional Township expenses on 
the golf course project and same would hold true with Lakeside Park.   
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MARCH 16, 2010 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
PAGE 3 
 
 
Supervisor Stumbo said all necessary legal documents would be in place to protect the 
Township.  
 
Mr. Serafinski stated the public hearing was based on the conceptual presentation and 
detailed drawings and construction were at least a year out.   
 
Clerk Lovejoy Roe stated it was a great effort and thanked Mr. Serafinski and others 
who worked on the project. She said it was a great collaboration and working together 
was the only way to complete projects of this type. Clerk Lovejoy Roe stressed this was 
a conceptual plan and the Township would not spend money on detailed design until a 
grant was awarded. She indicated Supervisor Stumbo had made it clear that all the 
legal agreements would be worked out before accepting the grant. The Township’s 
significant contribution was the land and the commitment of the collaborators would be 
worked out before bidding the project and accepting the grant.  Clerk Lovejoy Roe was 
confident all legal needs of the Township would be met and Township Attorney would 
insure the Township’s interest would be protected. 
 
Mr. Serafinski stated the grant required a minimum 25% match. He explained that with 
the commitments from all involved parties, the match was approximately 70-75% which 
would give the Township additional points.   
 
Ms. Kaiser, Ypsilanti Township resident questioned if finances would cover the costs of 
construction two years from now.   
 
Mr. Barrick stated the project would be bid in 2011 and once the bids were received, the 
cost would be locked in.  
 
Attorney Winters stated any agreement the Township entered into would cover cost 
overruns. He said Beckett and Raeder had done a comprehensive list of cost estimates 
and had done their due diligence to provide a good estimate of actual costs. He said the 
legal agreements would need to be strict and specific in regards to the responsibilities of 
all parties for both the grant application and maintenance.   
 
Supervisor Stumbo asked the audience to indicate if they were present on behalf of the 
Saline Rowing Club.   
 
The public hearing was closed at approximately 7:22 p.m.  
 
 
Mr. Serafinski further explained the grant still needed to be prepared. He said part of 
grant requirement was to hold the public hearing and to include resolutions passed by 
the Ypsilanti Township Park Commission and the Township Board. 
 
Supervisor Stumbo stated she was definitely in favor of the grant project.  
 
 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MARCH 16, 2010 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
PAGE 4 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Sabrina Gross, Pittsfield Township resident thanked the Township Board for their 
consideration of the project on Ford Lake. As the parent of two daughters who had 
rowed on Ford Lake, she said this was an amazing opportunity. Ms. Gross stated she 
attended a Regatta at Ford Lake Park with a lot Ann Arbor parents and rowers, many of 
whom had never been to Ypsilanti Township or on Ford Lake. They could not believe 
what a jewel the lake was. She said by opening up this park for more usage, the 
Township would provided additional recreational opportunities for more people and 
more people would become aware of Ford Lake and the great resource it was to the 
entire area.  
 
Chris Cook, Saline resident said he was also a parent of two daughters who rowed on 
Ford Lake. He said rowing was a great sport and he had one daughter at Philadelphia 
University on a rowing scholarship.  Mr. Cook hoped the grant would move forward 
because it would give the schools in Ypsilanti Township the opportunity to begin rowing 
teams. He said there were significant scholarship opportunities for rowers, particularly 
for girls.   
 
 
 
MINUTES OF THE FEBRUARY 16, 2010 WORK SESSION AND REGULAR 
MEETING AND FEBRUARY 22, 2010 SPECIAL MEETING AND EXECUTIVE 
SESSION 
 
A motion was made by Trustee Currie and supported by Treasurer Doe to 
approve the minutes of the February 16, 2010 Work Session and Regular Meeting. 
and February 22, 2010 Special Meeting and Executive Session. The motion 
carried unanimously. 
 
 
SUPERVISOR REPORT 
 
Supervisor Stumbo provided an overview of meetings attended by full-time officials and 
staff. She said Standard and Poors raised the Township’s bond rating to AA which was 
directly reflective of the fiscal management of Ypsilanti Township. She announced the 
Community Wide Neighborhood Watch Meeting was scheduled for Thursday, April 1, 
2010 at the Civic Center. She also announced the Washtenaw County Sheriff’s 
Community Forums were scheduled for April 13, 2010 from 7- 9 p.m. at the Whittaker 
Rd. Library and April 27, 2010 from 7 – 9 p.m. at the Community Center on Clark Rd. 
She said a special meeting to discuss the Police Services lawsuit would be scheduled 
when all Board Member could attend. 
 
 
 
 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MARCH 16, 2010 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
PAGE 5 
 
 
CLERK REPORT 
 
Clerk Lovejoy Roe announced the last day to register to vote in the Lincoln School 
District bond proposal election was Monday, April 5, 2010. She said an absentee ballot 
application could be obtained by contacting the Clerk’s office by phone or email.  
 
 
TREASURER REPORT 
 
A. FEBRUARY 2010 
 
Treasurer Doe gave the report for February, 2010. The beginning balance was 
$32,050,402.78 and the ending balance was $36,918,736.18. 
 
A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Trustee Martin to receive 
and file the February, 2010 Treasurer’s report (see attached). The motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
 
TRUSTEE REPORT 
 
Trustee Currie said she attended the Appleridge Neighborhood Watch meeting and 
crime was down in the area.  
 
Trustee Martin provided a brief overview of the Water Conservation Advisory 
Commission meeting where they discussed the Ford Lake aeration project. He reported 
the study indicated aeration would improve the algae issue but it would not completely 
eradicate the algae blooms. The WCAC was seeking grants to help cover the $700,000 
projected cost. He also said operating costs for the project would be approximately 
$12,000 per year for ten (10) years or a lump sum of $120,000. Trustee Martin reported 
Paint Creek cleanup was scheduled for Ypsilanti Pride Day.   
 
 
ATTORNEY REPORT 
 
A.  General Legal Update 
  
Attorney Winters thanked the Community Standards Department staff for their 
assistance with nuisance abatement Circuit Court cases that had been filed at the 
request of the board to protect the public and maintain Township neighborhoods.  
He reported that Velvet Touch, located on Michigan Ave. would be permanently closing.   
Attorney Winters stated he attended the first Aerotropolis Development Corporation 
meeting on March 1, 2010 and Supervisor Stumbo was appointed to the Executive 
Committee. He suggested the Board appoint an alternate to serve in case of her 
absence. 
 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MARCH 16, 2010 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
PAGE 6 
 
 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
1. 2nd READING RESOLUTION NO. 2010-02, PROPOSED ORDINANCE NO. 2010- 

402 – WIND GENERATORS 
 
A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Trustee Martin to 
approve the 2nd reading of Resolution No. 2010-02, Proposed Ordinance No. 2010-
402 – Wind Generators (see attached). The motion carried as follows:  
 
Martin:      Yes        Eldridge:     Absent       Currie:     Yes        Sizemore:     Absent 
Stumbo:    Yes        Roe:            Yes             Doe:         Yes 
 
 
2.     2nd READING RESOLUTION NO. 2010-03, PROPOSED ORDINANCE NO.    
        2010-403 AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 2009-391 – WAIVING, FOR A  
        LIMTED TIME, THE CHARGES REQUIRED PURSUANT TO ARTICLES II  
        AND III OF CHAPTER 62 “UTILITIES” OF THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP  
        OF YPSILANTI CODE OF ORDINANCES, AS AMENDED, IN ORDER TO  
        PROVIDE ECONOMIC STIMULUS, ENCOURAGE DEVELOPMENT AND  
        CREATE JOB OPPORTUNITIES WITHIN THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF  
         YPSILANTI 
 
A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Trustee Currie to 
approve the 2nd reading of Resolution No. 2010-03, Proposed Ordinance No. 2010-
403 Amending Ordinance No. 2009-391 – Waiving, for a limited time, the charges 
required pursuant to Articles II and III of Chapter 62 “Utilities” of the Charter 
Township of Ypsilanti Code of Ordinances, as amended, in order to provide 
economic stimulus, encourage development and create job opportunities within 
the Charter Township of Ypsilanti (see attached).  The motion carried as follows:  
 
Martin:      Yes        Eldridge:     Absent       Currie:     Yes        Sizemore:     Absent 
Stumbo:    Yes        Roe:            Yes             Doe:         Yes 
 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
1. REQUEST AUTHORIZATION TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT  WITH DTE 

TO TRACK AND MONITOR YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP’S REMAINING 2009 
RENEWABLE ENERGY CREDITS FOR UP TO FIVE YEARS AND AUTHORIZE 
SIGNING OF THE AGREEMENT 

 
A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Treasurer Doe to 
approve the agreement with DTE to track and monitor Ypsilanti Township’s 
remaining 2009 renewable energy credits for up to five years, contingent upon 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MARCH 16, 2010 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
PAGE 7 
 
attorney review and to authorize the signing of the agreement. Motion carried 
unanimously.  
 
 
2. REQUEST AUTHORIZATION TO ENTER INTO QUALIFIED VOTER FILE’S  

ELECTRONIC POLL BOOK PROJECT GRANT AGREEMENT WITH MICHIGAN 
DEPARTMENT OF STATE 

 
A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Trustee Currie to 
authorize entering into Qualified Voter File’s Electronic Poll Book Project Grant 
agreement with Michigan Department of State.  Motion carried unanimously.  
 
3. REQUEST AUTHORIZATION TO INITIATE LEGAL ACTION IF NECESSARY, IN 

WASHTENAW COUNTY CIRCUIT COURT TO ABATE PUBLIC NUISANCE FOR 
THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 7281 TEXTILE ROAD 

 
A motion was made by Treasurer Doe, supported by Clerk Lovejoy Roe to 
authorize legal action if necessary, in Washtenaw County Circuit Court to abate 
public nuisance for property located at 7281 Textile Road.  Motion carried 
unanimously.  
 
4. REQUEST AUTHORIZATION TO INITIATE LEGAL ACTION IF NECESSARY, IN 

WASHTENAW COUNTY CIRCUIT COURT TO ABATE PUBLIC NUISANCE FOR  
PROPERTY LOCATED AT 771 CLUBHOUSE DRIVE 

 
A motion was made by Trustee Currie, supported by Treasurer Doe to authorize 
legal action if necessary, in Washtenaw County Circuit Court to abate public 
nuisance for property located at 771 Clubhouse Drive. Motion carried 
unanimously.  
 
5. BUDGET AMENDMENT #3 
 
A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Treasurer Doe to 
approve Budget Amendment #3 (see attached).  Motion carried unanimously.  
 
6. PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT FOR COMPUTER PROGRAMMER 
 
A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Treasurer Doe to 
approve the Professional Services Contract for Computer Programmer, not to 
exceed $17,075. Motion carried unanimously.  
 
7. REQUEST OF JOE CHECK FOR A ONE-YEAR EXTENSION FOR PAINT 

CREEK  CROSSING, PD STAGE I REVISED CONCEPT PLAN AND PD STAGE 
II SITE PLAN REVIEW OF CONDOMINIUMS KNOWN AS HUNTER’S RIDGE 
DUE TO EXPIRE APRIL 3, 2010 

 
 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MARCH 16, 2010 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
PAGE 8 
 
 
A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Trustee Currie to 
approve the request of Joe Check for a one-year extension for Paint Creek 
Crossing, PD Stage I revised concept plan and PD Stage II Site Plan Review of 
Condominiums known as Hunter’s Ridge, contingent upon receipt of payment of 
taxes, within 90 days of the extension. Motion carried unanimously.  
 
 
OTHER BUSINESS 
 
1. REQUEST AUTHORIZATION TO INITIATE LEGAL ACTION IF NECESSARY, IN 

WASHTENAW COUNTY CIRCUIT COURT TO ABATE PUBLIC NUISANCE FOR 
THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 724 N. FORD BLVD. 

 
The board agreed to add this item to other business due to the seriousness of the 
situation. Ron Fulton, Building Director stated the township was called by Washtenaw 
County Mental Health Department to assist in securing this property and abating the 
public nuisance.  
 
A motion was made by Treasurer Doe, supported by Clerk Lovejoy Roe to to 
authorize legal action if necessary, in Washtenaw County Circuit Court to abate 
public nuisance for property located at 724 N. Ford Blvd.  Motion carried 
unanimously.  
  
Mr. Fulton reported the home was not salvageable and the family was thankful for the 
opportunity to find alternative housing.  He said demolition would be covered by NSP 
funds. 
 
 
AUTHORIZATIONS AND BIDS 
 
1.  RECOMMENDATION TO AWARD BID FOR VEGETATION & CLEAN-UP 

ABATEMENT 
 
A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Treasurer Doe to award 
the bid to Heppner Landscape Services, Inc. and in the event the contract could 
not be executed with Heppner, award the bid to Arrwood. Motion carried 
unanimously.   

 
 
STATEMENTS AND CHECKS  
 
A motion was made by Treasurer Doe, supported by Trustee Currie to approve 
Statements and Checks for March 2, 2010 in the amount of $2,772,035.73 and 
March 16, 2010 in the amount of $9,034,831.27.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MARCH 16, 2010 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
PAGE 9 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Treasurer Doe to adjourn 
the meeting. The motion carried unanimously.  
 
 
The meeting adjourned at approximately 8:25 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Brenda L. Stumbo, Supervisor   Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti   Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
 
 
 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2010-04 
 

LAKESIDE PARK IMPROVEMENTS 
 
 
WHEREAS, the Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees desires to 
enhance the recreational opportunities at Lakeside Park with the development of 
a community boathouse, classroom/picnic shelter, pathways internal to the park, 
pathway connection to the County Border-to-Border Trail, universally accessible 
community docks with fishing railings, scenic overlooks and naturalized storm 
water treatment system, and 
 
WHEREAS, the Lakeside Park Improvements contribute to goals and objectives 
identified in the 2009-2014 Ypsilanti Township Parks and Recreation Master Plan 
including “seek partnerships, as appropriate, to provide joint facilities and 
services whenever possible to reduce costs and improve the overall quality of 
operation”, “enhancing the current Park system with improved access, safety and 
mobility”, “provide better and more suitable access to Ford Lake and the Huron 
River” and “institute a comprehensive wayfinding and interpretive signage 
program”, and 
 
WHEREAS, the State of Michigan, Department of Natural Resources and the 
Environment is accepting applications for funding assistance through the 
Michigan Natural Resource Trust Fund for park development projects 
contributing to goals and objectives identified in the municipality’s approved 
parks and recreation master plan, and 
 
WHEREAS, the Charter Township of Ypsilanti Park Commission supports the 
Lakeside Park Improvements project and recommends in Resolution 2010-1 the 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees resolve to sponsor a Michigan 
Natural Resource Trust Fund application titled Lakeside Park Improvements, 
commit to undertaking the project if funded, commit local match funds in 
cooperation with other project partners as needed, and authorize Arthur 
Serafinski, Recreation Director to serve as the Township’s representative for this 
project, and 
 
WHEREAS, the Charter Township of Ypsilanti will commit to undertaking the 
project if funded, commit cooperation with other project partners as needed for 
successful development and operation of the project, and 
 
WHEREAS, the Charter Township of Ypsilanti will commit up to 63% local match 
toward these improvements including $497,500 in donated cash, materials, and 
labor from Eastern Michigan University; $50,000 cash donation from Saline Area 



Schools Rowing Club; and, $250,000 cash donation as requested from 
Washtenaw County Parks and Recreation; and  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
Board of Trustees, acting as duly elected representatives of the Citizens of the 
Township, does hereby authorize Arthur Serafinski, Recreation Director to serve 
as the Township’s representative for this project and does hereby request 
Michigan Natural Resource Trust Fund Board approval of the grant application 
titled “Lakeside Park Improvements” in the amount of $500,000.   

































































McLAIN & WINTERS 
ATTORNEYS AND COUNSELORS AT LAW 

61 N. HURON 
YPSILANTI, MICHIGAN 48197 

(734) 481-1120 
DENNIS O. McLAIN                                                                                                                                                FAX (734) 481-8909 
WM. DOUGLAS WINTERS                                                                                                                    E-MAIL: mcwinlaw@gmail.com 
ANGELA B. KING 

March 22, 2010 
 

Brenda L. Stumbo, Supervisor 
Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk  
Larry J. Doe, Treasurer  
Charter Township of Ypsilanti    
7200 S. Huron River Dr. 
Ypsilanti, MI  48197 
 

 
Re: HIGH PRIORITY – IMMEDIATE THREAT TO THE HEALTH, SAFETY 

AND WELFARE OF TENANTS WHO RESIDE AT 138, 138 1/2 AND 140 
SOUTH HARRIS 

 
 Parcel No.:     K-11-10-180-007 
 
 Purported Property Owner: Kurt M. Knop 
      5645 Wedgewood Rd 
      Canton, MI  48187  
 
 
Dear Board Members: 
 
When the Township Board authorized the initiation of legal proceedings to abate 
public nuisances for the properties located at 771 Clubhouse Dr. (Roundtree) 
and 724 N. Ford Blvd., respectively, I did not believe the condition of properties 
in the Township could get any worse.  I was wrong.  On Thursday, March 18, 
2010, Ordinance Officer Bill Elling was contacted by WCSD Deputy Saydak, 
“…concerning a loose pit bull…” at 138 1/2  S. Harris.  At the outset, it should 
be noted that the residential properties in question are located on one parcel.  
Furthermore, the “owner” of 138 and 138 1/2  S. Harris illegally converted the  
 
 
 
 

mailto:mwatty@voyager.net�


Township Board 
Re:  138, 138 1/2  & 140 S. Harris 
March 22, 2010 
Page 2 
 
 
property into a duplex.  However, for all the reasons set forth in the March 22, 
2010 email from Officer Elling, the entire building should be demolished, a copy  
of the Notice of Violation / Condemnation / Demolition and grotesque 
photographs being attached hereto. 
 
As set forth in greater detail in the Notice of Violation, the residential structure is 
“…in disrepair as well as infested with rats.  The foundation is crumbling, 
the roof is leaking which is causing the ceiling within her home to 
deteriorate.”  Likewise, the residential structure (again located on the same 
parcel) with the address of 140 S. Harris, is also “…in total ruins and is falling 
inward in some places”, a copy of that Notice of Violation along with 
attendant photographs also being attached hereto. 
 
In discussing the “ownership” of this property with Officer Elling, it is his 
understanding that while the Township’s assessing records indicate that this 
property is owned by a Michael J. Petty, a person by the name of Kurt M. Knop 
who resides in Canton Township actually owns the property.  Officer Elling 
confirmed that Mr. Knop was identified as a “contact person” in regard to 
previous enforcement action and also admitted that the property was  
re-conveyed to him by Michael J. Petty who is believed to be deceased. 
 
According to the Township’s records, this property was owned by Mr. Knop back 
in 1995 when it was sold to Michael Petty and it may very well be that Mr. Knop 
decided not to record the deed to avoid having the property taxes uncapped.  In 
any event, it is clear that Mr. Knop has been receiving rent from three separate 
tenants who reside in the two residential structures which are not suitable for 
human habitation.  Attached for your files is a copy of a letter addressed to Cislo 
Title Company requesting they perform a title search for the subject property, and 
to determine whether a death certificate in the name of Michael J. Petty has been 
filed with the County.  Since the next regular Board meeting is not scheduled until 
April 20, 2010,  in light of the foregoing and attachments hereto, I am prepared 
to file whatever legal action is required to protect the public health, safety and 
welfare of Township residents.  The filing of this emergency action will also 
ensure the Township’s legal obligations are fulfilled.  Please advise as to how 
you wish for me to proceed. 
 



Township Board 
Re:  138, 138 1/2  & 140 S. Harris 
March 22, 2010 
Page 3 
 
 
If after review of this correspondence and attachments hereto, you have any 
questions or I can be of further assistance, please contact me. 
 
 
Very truly yours, 

  
Wm. Douglas Winters 
 
drt 
enclosures 
cc: Trustees Currie/Eldridge/Martin/Sizemore 
 Ron Fulton 
 Mike Radzik 
 Bill Elling 
 Joe Lawson 
 Dan Dzierbicki 
 Dennis O. McLain 
   
  







 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Office of Community Standards 

NOTICE OF 

VIOLATION/CONDEMNATION/DEMOLITION                 

 

 

Date: March 18, 2010  

 

To:  Michael J. Petty 

 

Please be advised that on your property located at 138 ½ S. Harris Road. in The Charter 

Township of Ypsilanti, County of Washtenaw, State of Michigan, was inspected by Bill 

Elling, (belling@ytown.org) on March 18,2010. The inspection of that address indicates 

that the following conditions exist: 

 

The structure is not weather tight and is in a deteriorated condition. 

 

2006 International Property Maintenance Code Section 304.2 Protective treatment. 

All exterior surfaces, including but not limited to, doors, door and window frames, 

cornices, porches, trim, balconies, decks and fences shall be maintained in good 

condition. Exterior wood surfaces, other than decay resistant woods, shall be protected 

from the elements and decay by painting or other protective covering or treatment. 

Peeling, flaking and chipped paint shall be eliminated and surfaces repainted. All siding 

and masonry joints as well as those between the building envelope and the perimeter of 

windows, doors, and skylights shall be maintained weather resistant and water tight. 

 

The structure, located at this address, in the opinion of the code official, has been found 

to be non-habitable and as such is classified as blight and shall be abated. 

 

Charter Township of Ypsilanti Code of Ordinances 

 

ARTICLE II.  BLIGHT  
Sec. 26-26.  Purpose of article. 

It is the purpose of this article to prevent, reduce or eliminate blight or potential blight in 

the township by the prevention or elimination of certain environmental causes of blight or 

blighting factors which exist or which may in the future exist in the township. 

(Code 1975, § 13-32) 

  

Office of Community 
Standards 

 
 

7200 S. Huron River Drive 
Ypsilanti, MI  48197 

Phone:  (734) 485-3943 
Fax:  (734) 484-5151 

www.ytown.org 

mailto:belling@ytown.org


 

 

 

Sec. 26-27.  Enforcement of article. 

This article shall be enforced by the community development director of the township, 

any police officer of the county or state, any constable or police officer of the township or 

such other persons as shall be so designated by the township board. 

(Code 1975, § 13-33) 

 

Sec. 26-28.  Causes of blight or blighting factors enumerated. 

It is hereby determined that the following uses, structures and activities are causes of 

blight or blighting factors which, if allowed to exist, will tend to result in blight and 

undesirable neighborhoods: 

 (3)   The existence of any structure or part of such structure which, because of fire, wind 

or other natural disaster or physical deterioration, is no longer habitable as a dwelling, nor 

useful for any other purpose for which it may have been intended or lawfully used. 

(4)   The existence of any vacant dwelling, garage or other accessory building, unless the 

same is securely locked, with windows intact or neatly boarded up, and otherwise 

protected to prevent entrance thereto by unauthorized persons. 

(5)   The existence of any partially completed structure, unless such structure is in the 

course of construction in accordance with a valid and subsisting building permit issued 

by the township and unless such construction is completed within the time specified by 

existing ordinances. 

(Code 1975, § 13-34) 

 

International Property Maintenance Code 2006 
 

PM-107.5 Transfer of ownership. It shall be unlawful for the owner of any dwelling 

unit or structure who has received a compliance order or upon whom a notice of violation 

has been served to sell, transfer, mortgage, lease or otherwise dispose of such dwelling 

unit or structure to another until the provisions of the compliance order or notice of 

violation have been complied with, or until such owner shall first furnish the grantee, 

transferee, mortgagee or lessee a true copy of any compliance order or notice of violation 

issued by the code official and shall furnish to the code official a signed and notarized 

statement from the grantee, transferee, mortgagee or lessee, acknowledging the receipt of 

such compliance order or notice of violation and fully accepting the responsibility 

without condition for making the corrections or repairs required by such compliance 

order or notice of violation. 

PM-108.1 General. When a structure or equipment is found by the code official to be 

unsafe, or when a structure is found unfit for human occupancy, or is found unlawful, 

such structure shall be condemned pursuant to the provisions of this code. 

 

PM-108.1.1 Unsafe structures. An unsafe structure is one that is found to be dangerous 

to the life, health, property or safety of the public or the occupants of the structure by not 

providing minimum safeguards to protect or warn occupants in the event of fire, or 

because such structure contains unsafe equipment or is so damaged, decayed, dilapidated, 

structurally unsafe or of such faulty construction or unstable foundation, that partial or 

complete collapse is possible. 



 

 

PM-108.1.3 Structure unfit for human occupancy. A structure is unfit for human 

occupancy whenever the code official finds that such structure is unsafe, unlawful or, 

because of the degree to which the structure is in disrepair or lacks maintenance, is 

insanitary, vermin or rat infested, contains filth and contamination, or lacks ventilation, 

illumination, sanitary or heating facilities or other essential equipment required by this 

code, or because the location of the structure constitutes a hazard to the occupants of the 

structure or to the public. 

 

PM-108.5 Prohibited occupancy. Any occupied structure condemned and placarded by 

the code official shall be vacated as ordered by the code official. Any person who shall 

occupy a placarded premises or shall operate placarded equipment, and any owner or any 

person responsible for the premises who shall let anyone occupy a placarded premises or 

operate placarded equipment shall be liable for the penalties provided by this code. 

 

PM-110.1 General. The code official shall order the owner of any premises upon which 

is located any structure, which in the code official’s judgment is so old, dilapidated or has 

become so out of repair as to be dangerous, unsafe, insanitary or otherwise unfit for 

human habitation or occupancy, and such that it is unreasonable to repair the structure, to 

demolish and remove such structure; or if such structure is capable of being made safe by 

repairs, to repair and make safe and sanitary or to demolish and remove at the owner’s 

option; or where there has been a cessation of normal construction of any structure for a 

period of more than two years, to demolish and remove such structure. 

 

PM-110.3 Failure to comply. If the owner of a premises fails to comply with a 

demolition order within the time prescribed, the code official shall cause the structure to 

be demolished and removed, either through an available public agency or by contract or 

arrangement with private persons, and the cost of such demolition and removal shall be 

charged against the real estate upon which the structure is located and shall be a lien upon 

such real estate. 

R110.5 Revocation. The building official shall, in writing, suspend or revoke a 

certificate of occupancy issued under the provisions of this code wherever the certificate 

is issued in error, or on the basis of incorrect information supplied, or where it is 

determined that the building or structure or portion thereof is in violation of any 

ordinance or regulation or any of the provisions of this code. 

 



 

 

 
 

ADDRESS VERIFICATION  



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 

 



 

 

PM-104.2 Rule-making authority: 

The code official shall have power as necessary in the interest of public health, safety and 

general welfare, to adopt and promulgate rules and regulations to interpret and implement 

the provisions of this code to secure the intent thereof and to designate requirements 

applicable because of local climatic or other conditions. Such rules shall not have the 

effect of waiving structural or fire performance requirements specifically provided for in 

this code or of violating accepted engineering practice involving public safety. 

 

PM-104.4 Right of entry: 

The code official is authorized to enter the structure or premises at reasonable times to 

inspect subject to constitutional restrictions on unreasonable searches and seizures. If 

entry is refused or not obtained, the code official is authorized to pursue recourse as 

provided by law. 

 

PM-104.5 Identification: 

The code official shall carry proper identification when inspecting structures or premises 

in the performance of duties under this code. 

 

PM-107.1 Notice to owner or to person or persons responsible: 

Whenever the code official determines that there has been a violation of this code or has 

grounds to believe that a violation has occurred, notice shall be given to the owner or the 

person or persons responsible therefore in the manner prescribed in Sections PM-107.2 

and PM-107.3. Notices for condemnation procedures shall also comply with Section PM-

108.3. 

 

PM-107.2 Form: 

Such notice prescribed in Section PM-107.1 shall: 

1. Be in writing; 

2. Include a description of the real estate sufficient for identification; 

3. Include a statement of the reason or reasons why the notice is being issued; and 

4. Include a correction order allowing a reasonable time for the repairs and improvements 

required to bring the dwelling unit or structure into compliance with the provisions of this 

code. 

5. Inform the property owner of the right to appeal. 

 

PM-107.3 Method of service: 

Such notice shall be deemed to be properly served if a copy thereof is: 

 

1. Delivered personally; 

 

2. Sent by certified or first class mail addressed to the last known address: or 

 

3. If the notice is returned showing that the letter was not delivered, a copy thereof shall 

be posted in a conspicuous place in or about the structure affected by such notice. 

 

 



 

 

PM-108.3 Notice: 

Whenever the code official has condemned a structure or equipment under the provisions 

of this section, notice shall be posted in a conspicuous place in or about the structure 

affected by such notice and served on the owner or the person or persons responsible for 

the structure or equipment in accordance with Section PM-107.3. The notice shall be in 

the form prescribed in Section PM-107.2. 

 

PM-108.4 Placarding: 

Upon failure of the owner or person responsible to comply with the notice provisions 

within the time given, the code official shall post on the premises or on defective 

equipment, a placard bearing the word "Condemned" and a statement of the penalties 

provided for occupying the premises, operating the equipment or removing the placard. 

 

PM-108.4.1  Placard removal: 

The code official shall remove the condemnation placard whenever the defect or defects 

upon which the condemnation and placarding action were based have been eliminated. 

Any person who defaces or removes a condemnation placard without the approval of the 

code official shall be subject to the penalties provided by this code. 

 

PM-110.1 General: 

The code official shall order the owner of any premises upon which is located any 

structure, which in the code official's judgment is so old, dilapidated or has become so 

out of repair as to be dangerous, unsafe, unsanitary or otherwise unfit for human 

habitation or occupancy, and such that it is unreasonable to repair the structure, to raze 

and remove such structure; or if such structure is capable of being made safe by repairs, 

to repair and make safe and sanitary or to raze and remove at the owner's option; or 

where there has been a cessation of normal construction of any structure for a period of 

more than two years, to raze and remove such structure. 

 

PM-302.1 Sanitation: 

All exterior property and premises shall be maintained in a clean, safe and sanitary 

condition. The occupant shall keep that part of the exterior property which such occupant 

occupies or controls in a clean and sanitary condition. 

 

PM-302.5 Rodent harborage: 

All structures and exterior property shall be kept free from rodent harborage and  

infestation. Where rodents are found, they shall be promptly exterminated by approved 

processes which will not be injurious to human health. After extermination, proper 

precautions shall be taken to prevent reinfestation. 

 

PM-303.1 General: 

The exterior of a structure shall be maintained in good repair, structurally sound and 

sanitary so as not to pose a threat to the public health, safety or welfare. 

 

PM-303.2 Protective Treatment: 

All exterior surfaces, including but not limited to, doors, door and window frames, 



 

 

cornices, porches, trim, balconies, decks and fences shall be maintained in good 

condition. Exterior wood surfaces, other than decay-resistant woods, shall be protected 

from the elements and decay by painting or other protective covering or treatment. 

Peeling, flaking and chipped paint shall be eliminated and surfaces repainted. All siding 

and masonry joints as well as those between the building envelope and the perimeter of 

windows, doors, and skylights shall be maintained weather resistant and water tight. All 

metal surfaces subject to rust or corrosion shall be coated to inhibit such rust and 

corrosion and all surfaces with rust corrosion shall be stabilized and coated to inhibit 

future rust and corrosion. Oxidation stains shall be removed from exterior surfaces. 

Surfaces designed for stabilization by oxidation are exempt from this requirement. 

 

PM-303.4 Structural members: 

All structural members shall be maintained free from deterioration, and shall be capable 

of safely supporting the imposed dead and live loads. 

 

PM-303.5 Foundation Walls: 

All foundation walls shall be maintained plumb and free from cracks and breaks and shall 

be kept in such condition so as to prevent the entry of rodents and other pests. 

 

PM-303.6 Exterior walls: 

All exterior walls shall be free from holes, breaks, loose or rotting materials; and 

maintained weatherproof and properly surface coated where required to prevent 

deterioration. 

 

PM-303.7 Roofs and drainage: 

The roof and flashing shall be sound, tight and not have defects that admit rain. Roof 

drainage shall be adequate to prevent dampness or deterioration in the walls or interior 

portion of the structure. Roof drains, gutters and downspouts shall be maintained in good 

repair and free from obstructions. Roof water shall not be discharged in a manner that 

creates a public nuisance. 

 

PM-303.9 Overhang extensions: 

All overhang extensions including, but not limited to canopies, marquees, signs, metal 

awnings, fire escapes, standpipes, and exhaust ducts shall be maintained in good repair 

and be properly anchored so as to be kept in a sound condition. When required, all 

exposed surfaces of metal or wood shall be protected from the elements and against 

decay or rust by periodic application of weather-coating materials, such as paint or 

similar surface treatment. 

 

PM-303.10 Stairways, decks, porches and balconies: 

Every exterior stairway, deck, porch and balcony, and all appurtenances attached thereto, 

shall be maintained structurally sound, in good repair, with proper anchorage and capable 

of supporting the imposed loads. 

 

PM-303.12 Handrails and guards: 

Every handrail and guard shall be firmly fastened and capable of supporting normally 



 

 

imposed loads and shall be maintained in good condition. 

 

PM-303.13  Window and door frames: 

Every window, skylight, door and frame shall be kept in sound condition, good repair and 

weather tight. 

 

PM-303.13.1 Glazing: 

All glazing materials shall be maintained free from cracks and holes. 

 

PM-303.13.2 Openable windows: 

Every window, other than a fixed window, shall be easily openable and capable of being 

held in position by window hardware. 

 

PM-303.14 Insect screens: 

During the period from April 1 to November 1, every door, window and other outside 

opening utilized or required for ventilation purposes serving any structure containing 

habitable rooms, food preparation areas, food service areas, or any areas where products 

to be included or utilized in food for human consumption are processed, manufactured, 

packaged or stored, shall be supplied with approved tightly fitting screens of not less than 

16 mesh per inch (16 mesh per 25mm) and every swinging door shall have a self-closing 

device in good working condition. 

 

PM-304.1 General: 

The interior of a structure and equipment therein shall be maintained in good repair, 

structurally sound and in a sanitary condition. Occupants shall keep that part of the 

structure which such occupant occupies or controls in a clean and sanitary condition. 

Every owner of a structure containing a rooming house, a hotel, a dormitory, two or more 

dwelling units or two or more nonresidential occupancies, shall maintain, in a clean and 

sanitary condition, the shared or public areas of the structure and exterior property. 

 

PM-304.2 Structural members: 

All structural members shall be maintained structurally sound, and be capable of 

supporting the imposed loads. 

 

PM-304.3 Interior surfaces: 

All interior surfaces, including windows and doors, shall be maintained in good, clean 

and sanitary condition. Peeling, chipping, flaking or abraded paint shall be repaired, 

removed, or covered. Cracked or loose plaster, decayed wood, and other defective surface 

conditions shall be corrected. 

 

PM-304.5 Handrails and guards: 

Every handrail and guard shall be firmly fastened and capable of supporting normally 

imposed loads and shall be maintained in good condition. 

 

PM-306.1 Infestation: 

All structures shall be kept free from insect and rat infestation. All structures in which 



 

 

insects or rats are found shall be promptly exterminated by approved processes that will 

not be injurious to human health. After extermination, proper precautions shall be taken 

to prevent reinfestation. 

 

Section 308.1-3.  

All double hung windows must be equipped with sash locks securely attached to the inner 

window frame by screws a minimum of ¾ inch in length. Double hung windows which 

have a sill less than eight feet above the outside grade shall also be equipped with pin 

locks or other secondary locks approved by the department. The pins for such locks shall 

be secured to the window frame. The pins shall be insertable into holes drilled as a slight 

downward angle through the inner frame and halfway into the outer frame. The pins shall 

not require the use of any key or tool for removal. 

 

PM-504.3 Plumbing system hazards.  

Where it is found that a plumbing system in a structure constitutes a hazard to the 

occupants or the structure by reason of inadequate service, inadequate venting, cross 

connection, backsiphonage improper installation, deterioration or damage or for similar 

reasons, the code official shall require the defects to be corrected to eliminate the hazard. 

 

PM 504.1 General.  

All plumbing fixtures shall be properly installed and maintained in working order, and 

shall be kept free from obstructions, leaks and defects and be capable of performing the 

function for which such plumbing fixtures are designed. All plumbing fixtures shall be 

maintained in a safe, and sanitary and functional condition. 

 

PM 504.3 Plumbing system hazards.  

Where it is found that a plumbing system in a structure constitutes a hazard to the 

occupants or the structure by reason of inadequate venting, cross connection, 

backsiphonage, improper installation, deterioration or damage or for similar reasons, the 

code official shall require the defects to be corrected to eliminate the hazard. 

 

PM - 302.5 Rodent harborage. 

 All structures and exterior property shall be kept free from rodent harborage and 

infestation. Where rodents are found, they shall be promptly exterminated by 

approved processes which will not be injurious to human health. After extermination, 

proper precautions shall be taken to eliminate rodent harborage and prevent reinfestation. 

 

PM-604.3 Electrical system hazards 

Where it is found that the electrical system in a structure constitutes a hazard to the 

occupants or the structure by reason of inadequate service, improper fusing, insufficient 

receptacle and lighting outlets, improper wiring or installation, deterioration or damage, 

or for similar reasons, the code official shall require the defects to be corrected to 

eliminate the hazard. 

 

 

 



 

 

PM-704.1 General.  

All systems, devices and equipment to detect a fire, actuate an 

alarm, or suppress or control a fire or any combination thereof shall be maintained in an 

operable condition at all times in accordance with the INTER-NATIONAL FIRE CODE. 

 

PM-704.2 Smoke Alarms.  

Single or multiple-station smoke alarms shall be installed 

and maintained in Groups R-2, R-3, R-4 and in dwellings not regulated in Group 

R occupancies, regardless of occupant load at all the following locations: 

 

1. On the ceiling or wall outside of each separate sleeping area in the immediate 

vicinity of bedrooms. 

 

2. In each room used for sleeping purposes. 

 

3. In each story within a dwelling unit, including basements and cellars but not 

including crawl spaces and uninhabitable attics.. In dwelling units or dwelling units with 

split levels and without an intervening door between the adjacent  levels, a smoke alarm 

installed on the upper level shall suffice for the adjacent 

lower level provided that the lower level is less than one full story below the upper level.  

 

Single or multiple-station smoke alarms shall be installed in other groups in accordance 

with INTERNATIONAL FIRE CODE. 

 

Sec. 26-28.  Blight  

(2)     The storage or accumulation of litter, junk, trash, rubbish, refuse, waste materials, 

garbage, offal, paper, glass, cans, bottles, debris or other foreign substances of every kind 

and description, except as such may be stored as provided under the rules and regulations 

of this Code. The term "junk" shall include parts of machinery or motor vehicles; unused 

appliances stored in the open; and remnants of wood, metal or any other cast-off 

materials of any kind, whether or not the same could be put to any reasonable use. 

The following list of blight items may not be complete. There may be more blight items 

on the property that were either not observed or listed in this letter. Please look at the 

items described as blight in the ordinance above and remove them from the property. 

 

The structure at the above address is hereby ordered repaired or demolished. A 

permit for repair or demolition shall be secured within 30 days from today’s date 

and the structure removed within 60 days from today’s date or repairs to commence 

immediately and be completed within the time frame specified on the building 

permit. If a permit is not acquired within the specified time frame, legal action will 

ensue.  

The certificate of occupancy on this structure is hereby revoked. 

You have the right to appeal this notice of violation. If you choose to appeal, contact 

The Office of Community Standards at 734-485-3943 and request an application for 

The Construction Board of Appeals. (Fee for appeal application is $100). 







 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Office of Community Standards 

NOTICE OF VIOLATION                 

 

 

Date: March 19, 2010 

 

To:  Kurt Knob 

 

Please be advised that on your property located at 140 S. Harris Road. in The Charter 

Township of Ypsilanti, County of Washtenaw, State of Michigan, was inspected by Bill 

Elling, (belling@ytown.org) on March 19, 2010. The inspection of that address indicates 

that the following conditions exist: 

 

The structure is not weather tight and is in a deteriorated condition. 

 

2006 International Property Maintenance Code Section 304.2 Protective treatment. 

All exterior surfaces, including but not limited to, doors, door and window frames, 

cornices, porches, trim, balconies, decks and fences shall be maintained in good 

condition. Exterior wood surfaces, other than decay resistant woods, shall be protected 

from the elements and decay by painting or other protective covering or treatment. 

Peeling, flaking and chipped paint shall be eliminated and surfaces repainted. All siding 

and masonry joints as well as those between the building envelope and the perimeter of 

windows, doors, and skylights shall be maintained weather resistant and water tight. 

 

The structure, located at this address, in the opinion of the code official, has been found 

to be non-habitable and as such is classified as blight and shall be abated. 

 

Charter Township of Ypsilanti Code of Ordinances 

 

ARTICLE II.  BLIGHT  
Sec. 26-26.  Purpose of article. 

It is the purpose of this article to prevent, reduce or eliminate blight or potential blight in 

the township by the prevention or elimination of certain environmental causes of blight or 

blighting factors which exist or which may in the future exist in the township. 

(Code 1975, § 13-32) 

 

  

Office of Community 
Standards 

 
 

7200 S. Huron River Drive 
Ypsilanti, MI  48197 

Phone:  (734) 485-3943 
Fax:  (734) 484-5151 

www.ytown.org 

mailto:belling@ytown.org


 

 

 

Sec. 26-27.  Enforcement of article. 

This article shall be enforced by the community development director of the township, 

any police officer of the county or state, any constable or police officer of the township or 

such other persons as shall be so designated by the township board. 

(Code 1975, § 13-33) 

 

Sec. 26-28.  Causes of blight or blighting factors enumerated. 

It is hereby determined that the following uses, structures and activities are causes of 

blight or blighting factors which, if allowed to exist, will tend to result in blight and 

undesirable neighborhoods: 

 (3)   The existence of any structure or part of such structure which, because of fire, wind 

or other natural disaster or physical deterioration, is no longer habitable as a dwelling, nor 

useful for any other purpose for which it may have been intended or lawfully used. 

(4)   The existence of any vacant dwelling, garage or other accessory building, unless the 

same is securely locked, with windows intact or neatly boarded up, and otherwise 

protected to prevent entrance thereto by unauthorized persons. 

(5)   The existence of any partially completed structure, unless such structure is in the 

course of construction in accordance with a valid and subsisting building permit issued 

by the township and unless such construction is completed within the time specified by 

existing ordinances. 

(Code 1975, § 13-34) 

 

International Property Maintenance Code 2006 
 

PM-107.5 Transfer of ownership. It shall be unlawful for the owner of any dwelling 

unit or structure who has received a compliance order or upon whom a notice of violation 

has been served to sell, transfer, mortgage, lease or otherwise dispose of such dwelling 

unit or structure to another until the provisions of the compliance order or notice of 

violation have been complied with, or until such owner shall first furnish the grantee, 

transferee, mortgagee or lessee a true copy of any compliance order or notice of violation 

issued by the code official and shall furnish to the code official a signed and notarized 

statement from the grantee, transferee, mortgagee or lessee, acknowledging the receipt of 

such compliance order or notice of violation and fully accepting the responsibility 

without condition for making the corrections or repairs required by such compliance 

order or notice of violation. 

PM-108.1 General. When a structure or equipment is found by the code official to be 

unsafe, or when a structure is found unfit for human occupancy, or is found unlawful, 

such structure shall be condemned pursuant to the provisions of this code. 

 

PM-108.1.1 Unsafe structures. An unsafe structure is one that is found to be dangerous 

to the life, health, property or safety of the public or the occupants of the structure by not 

providing minimum safeguards to protect or warn occupants in the event of fire, or 

because such structure contains unsafe equipment or is so damaged, decayed, dilapidated, 

structurally unsafe or of such faulty construction or unstable foundation, that partial or 

complete collapse is possible. 



 

 

 

PM-108.1.3 Structure unfit for human occupancy. A structure is unfit for human 

occupancy whenever the code official finds that such structure is unsafe, unlawful or, 

because of the degree to which the structure is in disrepair or lacks maintenance, is 

insanitary, vermin or rat infested, contains filth and contamination, or lacks ventilation, 

illumination, sanitary or heating facilities or other essential equipment required by this 

code, or because the location of the structure constitutes a hazard to the occupants of the 

structure or to the public. 

 

PM-108.5 Prohibited occupancy. Any occupied structure condemned and placarded by 

the code official shall be vacated as ordered by the code official. Any person who shall 

occupy a placarded premises or shall operate placarded equipment, and any owner or any 

person responsible for the premises who shall let anyone occupy a placarded premises or 

operate placarded equipment shall be liable for the penalties provided by this code. 

 

PM-110.1 General. The code official shall order the owner of any premises upon which 

is located any structure, which in the code official’s judgment is so old, dilapidated or has 

become so out of repair as to be dangerous, unsafe, insanitary or otherwise unfit for 

human habitation or occupancy, and such that it is unreasonable to repair the structure, to 

demolish and remove such structure; or if such structure is capable of being made safe by 

repairs, to repair and make safe and sanitary or to demolish and remove at the owner’s 

option; or where there has been a cessation of normal construction of any structure for a 

period of more than two years, to demolish and remove such structure. 

 

PM-110.3 Failure to comply. If the owner of a premises fails to comply with a 

demolition order within the time prescribed, the code official shall cause the structure to 

be demolished and removed, either through an available public agency or by contract or 

arrangement with private persons, and the cost of such demolition and removal shall be 

charged against the real estate upon which the structure is located and shall be a lien upon 

such real estate. 

R110.5 Revocation. The building official shall, in writing, suspend or revoke a 

certificate of occupancy issued under the provisions of this code wherever the certificate 

is issued in error, or on the basis of incorrect information supplied, or where it is 

determined that the building or structure or portion thereof is in violation of any 

ordinance or regulation or any of the provisions of this code. 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 

 



 

 

PM-107.1 Notice to owner or to person or persons responsible: 

Whenever the code official determines that there has been a violation of this code or has 

grounds to believe that a violation has occurred, notice shall be given to the owner or the 

person or persons responsible therefore in the manner prescribed in Sections PM-107.2 

and PM-107.3. Notices for condemnation procedures shall also comply with Section PM-

108.3. 

 

PM-107.2 Form: 

Such notice prescribed in Section PM-107.1 shall: 

1. Be in writing; 

2. Include a description of the real estate sufficient for identification; 

3. Include a statement of the reason or reasons why the notice is being issued; and 

4. Include a correction order allowing a reasonable time for the repairs and improvements 

required to bring the dwelling unit or structure into compliance with the provisions of this 

code. 

5. Inform the property owner of the right to appeal. 

 

PM-107.3 Method of service: 

Such notice shall be deemed to be properly served if a copy thereof is: 

 

1. Delivered personally; 

 

2. Sent by certified or first class mail addressed to the last known address: or 

 

3. If the notice is returned showing that the letter was not delivered, a copy thereof shall 

be posted in a conspicuous place in or about the structure affected by such notice. 

 

PM-108.4 Placarding: 

Upon failure of the owner or person responsible to comply with the notice provisions 

within the time given, the code official shall post on the premises or on defective 

equipment, a placard bearing the word "Condemned" and a statement of the penalties 

provided for occupying the premises, operating the equipment or removing the placard. 

 

PM-108.4.1  Placard removal: 

The code official shall remove the condemnation placard whenever the defect or defects 

upon which the condemnation and placarding action were based have been eliminated. 

Any person who defaces or removes a condemnation placard without the approval of the 

code official shall be subject to the penalties provided by this code. 

 

PM-110.1 General: 

The code official shall order the owner of any premises upon which is located any 

structure, which in the code official's judgment is so old, dilapidated or has become so 

out of repair as to be dangerous, unsafe, unsanitary or otherwise unfit for human 

habitation or occupancy, and such that it is unreasonable to repair the structure, to raze 

and remove such structure; or if such structure is capable of being made safe by repairs, 

to repair and make safe and sanitary or to raze and remove at the owner's option; or 



 

 

where there has been a cessation of normal construction of any structure for a period of 

more than two years, to raze and remove such structure. 

 

PM-303.1 General: 

The exterior of a structure shall be maintained in good repair, structurally sound and 

sanitary so as not to pose a threat to the public health, safety or welfare. 

 

PM-303.2 Protective Treatment: 

All exterior surfaces, including but not limited to, doors, door and window frames, 

cornices, porches, trim, balconies, decks and fences shall be maintained in good 

condition. Exterior wood surfaces, other than decay-resistant woods, shall be protected 

from the elements and decay by painting or other protective covering or treatment. 

Peeling, flaking and chipped paint shall be eliminated and surfaces repainted. All siding 

and masonry joints as well as those between the building envelope and the perimeter of 

windows, doors, and skylights shall be maintained weather resistant and water tight. All 

metal surfaces subject to rust or corrosion shall be coated to inhibit such rust and 

corrosion and all surfaces with rust corrosion shall be stabilized and coated to inhibit 

future rust and corrosion. Oxidation stains shall be removed from exterior surfaces. 

Surfaces designed for stabilization by oxidation are exempt from this requirement. 

 

PM-303.4 Structural members: 

All structural members shall be maintained free from deterioration, and shall be capable 

of safely supporting the imposed dead and live loads. 

 

PM-303.5 Foundation Walls: 

All foundation walls shall be maintained plumb and free from cracks and breaks and shall 

be kept in such condition so as to prevent the entry of rodents and other pests. 

 

PM-303.6 Exterior walls: 

All exterior walls shall be free from holes, breaks, loose or rotting materials; and 

maintained weatherproof and properly surface coated where required to prevent 

deterioration. 

 

PM-303.7 Roofs and drainage: 

The roof and flashing shall be sound, tight and not have defects that admit rain. Roof 

drainage shall be adequate to prevent dampness or deterioration in the walls or interior 

portion of the structure. Roof drains, gutters and downspouts shall be maintained in good 

repair and free from obstructions. Roof water shall not be discharged in a manner that 

creates a public nuisance. 

 

PM-303.9 Overhang extensions: 

All overhang extensions including, but not limited to canopies, marquees, signs, metal 

awnings, fire escapes, standpipes, and exhaust ducts shall be maintained in good repair 

and be properly anchored so as to be kept in a sound condition. When required, all 

exposed surfaces of metal or wood shall be protected from the elements and against 

decay or rust by periodic application of weather-coating materials, such as paint or 



 

 

similar surface treatment. 

 

PM-303.13  Window and door frames: 

Every window, skylight, door and frame shall be kept in sound condition, good repair and 

weather tight. 

 

PM-304.1 General: 

The interior of a structure and equipment therein shall be maintained in good repair, 

structurally sound and in a sanitary condition. Occupants shall keep that part of the 

structure which such occupant occupies or controls in a clean and sanitary condition. 

Every owner of a structure containing a rooming house, a hotel, a dormitory, two or more 

dwelling units or two or more nonresidential occupancies, shall maintain, in a clean and 

sanitary condition, the shared or public areas of the structure and exterior property. 

 

PM-304.2 Structural members: 

All structural members shall be maintained structurally sound, and be capable of 

supporting the imposed loads. 

 

PM-304.3 Interior surfaces: 

All interior surfaces, including windows and doors, shall be maintained in good, clean 

and sanitary condition. Peeling, chipping, flaking or abraded paint shall be repaired, 

removed, or covered. Cracked or loose plaster, decayed wood, and other defective surface 

conditions shall be corrected. 

 

PM-306.1 Infestation: 

All structures shall be kept free from insect and rat infestation. All structures in which 

insects or rats are found shall be promptly exterminated by approved processes that will 

not be injurious to human health. After extermination, proper precautions shall be taken 

to prevent reinfestation. 

 

PM-504.3 Plumbing system hazards.  

Where it is found that a plumbing system in a structure constitutes a hazard to the 

occupants or the structure by reason of 

inadequate service, inadequate venting, cross connection, backsiphonage 

 improper installation, deterioration or damage or for similar reasons, the code 

 official shall require the defects to be corrected to eliminate the hazard. 

 

PM 504.1 General.  

All plumbing fixtures shall be properly installed and maintained in working order, and 

shall be kept free from obstructions, leaks and defects and be capable of performing the 

function for which such plumbing fixtures are designed. All plumbing fixtures shall be 

maintained in a safe, and sanitary and functional condition. 

 

PM-604.3 Electrical system hazards 

Where it is found that the electrical system in a structure constitutes a hazard to the 

occupants or the structure by reason of inadequate service, improper fusing, insufficient 



 

 

receptacle and lighting outlets, improper wiring or installation, deterioration or damage, 

or for similar reasons, the code official shall require the defects to be corrected to 

eliminate the hazard. 

 

The structure at the above address is hereby ordered repaired or demolished. A 

permit for repair or demolition shall be secured within 30 days from today’s date 

and the structure removed within 60 days from today’s date or repairs to commence 

immediately and be completed within the time frame specified on the building 

permit. If a permit is not acquired within the specified time frame, legal action will 

ensue. 

The certificate of occupancy on this structure is hereby revoked. 

You have the right to appeal this notice of violation. If you choose to appeal, contact 

The Office of Community Standards at 734-485-3943 and request an application for 

The Construction Board of Appeals. (Fee for appeal application is $100). 

 



McLAIN & WINTERS 
ATTORNEYS AND COUNSELORS AT LAW 

61 N. HURON 
YPSILANTI, MICHIGAN 48197 

(734) 481-1120 
DENNIS O. McLAIN                                                                                                                                                 FAX (734) 481-8909 
WM. DOUGLAS WINTERS                                                                                                                     E-MAIL: mcwinlaw@gmail.com 
ANGELA B. KING 
      
      March 25, 2010 
 
Brenda Stumbo, Supervisor 
Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk 
Larry Doe, Treasurer 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
7200 South Huron River Drive 
Ypsilanti, MI 48197 
 
 
Re: Whitney Hayes Passino 
 
 Location #1:  1095 E. Michigan Ave 
 Location #2:  1370 E. Michigan Ave 
     
 
Dear Township Officials: 
 
On October 3, 2008, Judge Timothy Connors of the Washtenaw County Circuit 
Court in Case 01-899-CZ, (Charter Township of Ypsilanti v Whitney Hayes 
Passino, Whitney Hayes Passino, LLC and Whitney Hayes Auto Service, Jointly & 
Severally, Defendants) issued a Permanent Restraining Order Precluding 
Defendants from Operating a Motor Vehicle Repair Business from, on, or in 
the Premises Commonly Known as 1095 E. Michigan Avenue, Ypsilanti 
Township, Michigan.  This particular lawsuit and subsequent permanent 
restraining order arose out of numerous violations of the Township’s Zoning 
Ordinance including illegal signs, storage, and the operation of an illegal major 
automobile repair business. 
 
Since the entry of the Permanent Restraining Order (10/03/2008), Mr. Passino 
moved his business to 850 Minion Street.  The Township eventually filed suit 
against Mr. Passino as well as the property owner at this location in Case No: 08-
1316-CZ (Charter Township of Ypsilanti v Whitney Hayes Passino, Individually, 
and d/b/a Whitney’s Auto, Whitney Hayes Passino LLC, and Herron Associates 
LLC, Jointly & Severally, Defendants.)  Mr. Passino was subsequently evicted from 
this premises by his landlord, who were co-defendants in the lawsuit. 

mailto:mwatty@voyager.net�


Township Board 
Re: Passino 
March 25, 2010 
Page 2 of 3 
 
 
 
 
Since being evicted from 850 Minion St., Mr. Passino has moved his business to 
1370 E. Michigan Ave, where he rents the property from a local businessman, 
Jerry Taylor, who works at Sesi Lincoln Mercury.  As can be predicted, Mr. Passino 
has once again “snubbed his nose” at Township zoning ordinances, in particular, 
the sign ordinances.  Additionally, he is ignoring the prohibition against storage of 
trailers upon the premises.  Planning & Development Coordinator Joe Lawson has 
recently provided Mr. Passino with a detailed Notice of Violation (NOV), a copy of 
which is attached to this correspondence, although you may have already been 
provided it.  Mr. Lawson is awaiting Mr. Passino’s response, although Mr. Passino 
has been inundating the Township with emails, some of which make no sense, 
others which are cause for some concern due to the nature of their content.  Mr. 
Passino has also appeared at various times at the Township offices and made a 
nuisance out of himself, not to mention the fact he has a habit of sitting and staring 
at Township staff, causing staff to be concerned about his behavior. 
 
Although it was initially anticipated that Mr. Passino might legally operate a tire 
sales/repair facility at 1095 E. Michigan, which would not have been a violation of 
the Permanent Restraining Order, he instead has decided to illegally use the 
property for warehouse “inside” storage of tires.  This is contrary to the 
Township’s zoning (B-3) for this area.  The Township Ordinance Department has 
obtained photographs showing the stacks of tires piled up inside the premises.  
Although not a violation of the Permanent Restraining Order, this use clearly 
constitutes yet another effort by Mr. Passino to circumvent Township zoning 
ordinances and regulations.  It is the understanding of Township legal counsel Mr. 
Passino arranges for the sale of tires at the 1370 E. Michigan address, then has his 
staff run back to 1095 E. Michigan Ave, pick up the necessary tires, and return.  
Although it might be a “reach” to try and link the use at 1095 E. Michigan to the 
motor vehicle repair business at 1370 E. Michigan, there is no question but that the 
current use of 1095 is still illegal 
 
Township legal counsel would request the Township Board consider authorizing 
Township legal counsel to proceed to circuit court to abate the nuisance created by 
the zoning violation at 1095 E. Michigan Ave.  Additionally, authorization is 
requested to proceed to circuit court to abate the nuisances at 1370 E. Michigan, if 
necessary.  In other words, if Mr. Passino does not positively respond to Joe 
Lawson’s NOV, we will be ready to proceed with the filing of such an action.  It 
should be noted, that at the same time Township legal counsel files a new action 



Township Board 
Re: Passino 
March 25, 2010 
Page 3 of 3 
 
 
 
against Mr. Passino with respect to 1095 E. Michigan Ave, we also intend to file a 
motion asking Judge Timothy Connors to hold Mr. Passino in contempt for violating 
the Permanent Restraining Order of October 3, 2008.  All cases will be 
reassigned to Judge Connors anyway and he may just feel that Mr. Passino’s 
operations at 1095 E. Michigan Ave somehow constitute engaging in a “motor 
vehicle repair business”, or at least facilitating the operation of a motor vehicle 
repair business. 
 
In the event the Township Board authorizes the requested circuit court actions, 
Township legal counsel also intends to request Judge Connors issue an injunction 
prohibiting Mr. Passino from setting foot upon or in Township property including, 
but not necessarily limited to, the Township offices at 7200 Huron River Drive.  
Attached are also copies of recent emails received from Mr. Passino.  Please 
exercise caution when having any contact with him in the future. 
 
      Sincerely, 

      
  
      Dennis O. McLain 
      Ypsilanti Township Attorney  
 
/drt 
Enclosures  
cc: Trustees Currie/Eldridge/Martin/Sizemore  
 Bill Elling 

Ron Fulton 
Joe Lawson 

 Mike Radzik 
  





















 
 
 
 
 
 
 
March 8, 2010 
 
Whitney’s Auto Care 
Whitney Hayes Passino 
1370 East Michigan Avenue 
Ypsilanti, MI  48198 
 
Re:  Multiple Zoning Issues 
 
Mr. Passino, 
 
Please be advised that the Office of Community Standards is in receipt of complaints related to 
the number of signs adorning the property utilized by “Whitney’s Tire Co.” and also known as 
1370 East Michigan Avenue. 
 
Township Zoning Ordinance section 2109 regulates signage within the Township.  Please be 
advised that your site is in violation of said ordinance section.  As you will notice in the attached 
photograph (plate 1) taken on January 21, 2010, your site is adorned with 6 separate signs, only 
one of which was constructed with the benefit of a permit.  Township ordinance restricts ground 
signage to one sign per parcel in most cases.  In addition, wall signage shall not exceed 10% of 
the front façade of the building or 240 square feet, whichever is less.  You are clearly in violation 
as to the number of ground signs allowed and you have not yet obtained a permit for the existing 
wall sign.  After review the available Township records in relation to the one sign that does 
indeed have a permit, you have yet to call for an inspection.  In viewing the sign from the public 
right-of-way, it is unclear as to whether or not the sign was constructed properly in terms of 
height and setback.  I strongly urge you to verify the location and height of this sign and call to 
schedule the required final inspection(s). 
 
It was also disconcerting to take notice that the semi-trailers have now been completely enclosed 
by fencing.  In the spirit of cooperation, it was agreed that you would be permitted to utilize the 
semi-trailers at this location for the hauling and temporary storage of used tires associated with 
your business.  The conditions of this approval were that the trailers would be set upon a concrete 
pad, the trailers would remain licensed and road worthy at all times and would be used to 
transport in quality used tires and remove unusable tires from this location.  It is rather apparent 
that the semi-trailers have become a permanent fixture and are not being utilized as previously 
agreed.  This is evident in the attached photo (plate 2) that shows the trailers completely enclosed 
by a 6-foot tall chain link/privacy fence, also constructed without a permit.  With that said, please 
know that our previous agreement in relation to the noted trailers has been dissolved, thus the 
trailers must be removed from this location. 
 
In short, please be advised that you are currently in violation of the following regulations: 
 

• Section 2109 (signs) – Portable signs are not permitted and must be removed. 

  

Office of Community 
Standards 

 
7200 S. Huron River Drive 

Ypsilanti, MI  48197 
Phone:  (734) 485-3943 

Fax:  (734) 484-5151 
www.ytown.org 



1370 E. Michigan NOV 
March 8, 2010 

Page 2 of 5 
 

• Section 2109 (signs) – Failure to obtain a permit for the existing wall sign.  You must 
obtain a sign permit and call for a final inspection or remove the sign. 

• Section 2104 (parking) – Continue to park vehicles on green space/lawn area along East 
Michigan Avenue.  Parking shall only be permitted on approved surfaces. 

• Section 2104.9b (parking) – Utilization of semi-trailers for storage is not permitted and 
must be removed. 

• Section 2114 (fencing) – Failure to obtain permits for the construction of a fence.  
Fencing shall be removed. 

• Section 2305 (final inspection) – Failure to schedule a final inspection related to the 
permitted ground sign.  Schedule a final inspection as soon as possible. 

 
With that said, I am respectfully requesting that the noted items be resolved by no later than 
March 22, 2010.  Failure to comply with this notice shall result in the issuance of a municipal 
civil infraction and the potential for additional litigation. 
 
If you should have any questions regarding this notice, please do not hesitate to contact me at 
your convenience. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Joseph Lawson 
Planning and Development Coordinator 
 
Cc: File 
 Brenda Stumbo, Supervisor 
 Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk 
 Larry Doe, Treasurer 
 Mike Radzik, OCS Director 
 Ron Fulton, Building Director 
 Bill Elling, Ordinance Officer 
 Denny McLain, Twp Attorney 
 Mr. Jerry Taylor, PO Box 369, Saline, MI  48176 
 



1370 E. Michigan NOV 
March 8, 2010 

Page 3 of 5 
 

Plate 1 
January 21, 2010 



1370 E. Michigan NOV 
March 8, 2010 

Page 4 of 5 
  

Plate 2 
January 21, 2010 



1370 E. Michigan NOV 
March 8, 2010 

Page 5 of 5 
 

 

Plate 3 
March 8, 2010 



Snpennsor 

BRENDA L. STUMBO 
ckert 

KAREN LOVE JOY ROE 
Vressnrer 

LARRY J. DOE 
'7neseees 

JEAN HALL CURRIE 
STAN ELDRIDGE 

MIKE MARTIN 
DEE SIZEMORE 

Charter township of 
Tpsilanti 

Placing @residents First" 

Supervisor's Office 

7200 S. Huron River Drive 
Ypeilanii, Ml 48197 

Phone; (734) 481-0817 
Fax: (734) 484-0002 

www. ytown. org 

TO: Township Board 

FROM: 

DATE: 

RE: 

Jeff Allen, RSD Direct r 

March 24, 2010, rl 
Request to Print and I Postcard to Township Residents Regarding 
Changes in Brush and Recycling Services 

Due to the upcoming changes in brush and recycling services in the Township, I am 
requesting authorization to print and mail postcards to residents, reminding them of 
these changes. The cost will not exceed $4, 500 and can be charged to line item ¹226- 
226-000-900-000. 

If you have any questions, please contact me. 

tk 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
March 23, 2010 
 
 
 
Karen Lovejoy Roe 
Ypsilanti Township Clerk 
7200 S. Huron River Dr. 
Ypsilanti, MI 48197 
 
Re: Green Oaks Golf Course 
 Proposed 2010 Rate Schedule 
  
Dear Ms. Lovejoy Roe: 
 
At the Regular Meeting held on February 22, 2010, the Ypsilanti Township 
Greens Commission approved the proposed 2010 Rate Schedule. 
 
It is the recommendation of the Greens Commission that all rates remain the 
same as 2009. 
  
Please include the enclosed proposal on the next Ypsilanti Township Board 
agenda for consideration by the Board. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Ambrose Wilbanks 
Chair 
 
nkw  
 
Enclosure 
 
Cc:  Greens Commissioners 
 File 
 

  

Greens Commission 
 
 

1775 E. Clark Road 
Ypsilanti, MI  48198 

Phone:  (734) 485-0881 
Fax:  (734) 484-1992 

www.twp.ypsilanti.mi.us 



1775 East Clark Road, Ypsilanti, MI 48198 - (734) 485-0881

9 Holes 18 Holes    
*Residents

Weekdays 15.00$    20.00$    
Weekends 16.00      23.00      
Retirees (weekdays only) 10.00      12.00      
Carts 12.00      24.00      
Retirees Carts 10.00      20.00      
Twilight (after 2 p.m. weekends) 18.00      
Leagues 16.00      
Retirees 11.00      

*Non-Residents
Weekdays 16.00$    23.00$    
Weekends 18.00      27.00      
Retirees (weekdays only) 11.00      13.00      
Carts 12.00      24.00      
Retirees Carts 10.00      20.00      
Twilight (after 2 p.m. weekends) 20.00      

2010 Rates
*Residents

Full 7 Days 650.00$  
Spouse 175.00    
Retirees (weekdays only) 400.00    
Students with Parents 155.00    

*Non-Resident
Full 7 Days 800.00$  
Spouse 255.00    
Retirees (weekdays only) 540.00    
Students with Parents 205.00    

SEASONAL PASSES

GREEN OAKS GOLF COURSE
2010 RATE PROPOSAL

2010 RATES



Cgmrier Samtttsgtp af 'gysilmtitt 

i'of'IHNNf toN 
In Honor of 

Sexual Assault Awareness Nlonth 

April 2010 

WHEREAS, sexual assault affects women, children and men of all racial, cultural and economic 
backgrounds; and 

WHEREAS, in addition to the immediate physical and emotional costs, sexual assault may also 
have associated consequences of post-traumatic stress disorder, substance abuse, depression, 
homelessness, eating disorders and suicide; and 

WHEREAS, sexual assault can be devastating for not only the survivor, but also for the family 

and friends of the survivor; and 

WHEREAS, no one person, organization, agency or community can eliminate sexual assault on 

their own, but we can work together to educate our entire population about what can be done to prevent 

sexual assault, support victim/survivors and their significant others, and increase support for agencies 
providing services to victim/survivors; and 

WHEREAS, Sexual Assault Awareness Month provides an excellent opportunity for citizens to 

learn more about preventing sexual violence; 

NOW THEREFORE BE lT RESOLVED that the Charter Township of Ypsilanti hereby proclaims 

the month of April 2010 as Sexual Assault Awareness Month. 

Dated and signed this 29 day of March, 2010 

Brenda L. Stumbo, Supervisor Jean Hall Currie, Trustee 

Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk Stan Eldridge, Trustee 

Larry J. Doe, Treasurer Mike Martin, Trustee 

Dee Sizemore, Trustee 



Pzom at 3/18/2010 3i53 PM 001/002 

Stop QBII:ingViolene~~— 
A project of The Emily Fund 

PO Box 430, Roosevelt, NJ 06555-0430 
bob@stopdatingvtotence. org - 609462-9246 

3 women are murdered by an intimate partner every day in America 
4. 8 million American women are physically assaulted each year 

StopDateViolence. ozg to 1-734-484-0002 

Dear Mayor, 

Please join Governor Jennifer Granholm and help lead the way to ending violence against 
women by issuing a proclamation for April's Sexual Assault Awareness Month. 

Last month, 26 Governors and over 200 municipalities in 45 states declared proclamations and 
resolutions for February's Dating Violence Awareness Month, providing inspiration and opportunities for 
bringing communities together to address this serious issue. These widespread observances point out the 
growing awareness about the serious issue of violence against women. To help states, municipalities, 
agencies and individuals further the goals of the Violence Against Women Act, the US Department of 
Justice's Office of Violence Against Women has worked with Congress and the President to establish 
months designated to raise awareness about the four crimes included in the bill: domestic violence, sexual 

, , ""':::~KYAR assault, dating violence and stalking. Domestic Violence Awareness 
@~e. ' " 7", Month has been observed nationally for years, but this year's Senate 

-. , :::, Resolution for Teen Dating Violence Awareness & Prevention Month, 
and the widespread observance by states and municipalities has helped 
raise attention about violence against women to a whole new level 

Now, as a nation, we have an opportunity to continue momentum 
with April's Sexual Assault Awareness Month. Last year, President 

zg . ';-, ::::::-', :. ::" "': Obama issued a Presidential Proclamation for Sexual Assault 
Awareness Month for the very first time, and because of attention on the 
issue by the media, government and civil society, it is expected that 
national, state and local participation will be even greater this year. 

r I learned about violence against women the hard way — my 19 
"'g:''-'-' 4;::;~~i:;::::i;:. ;: year old daughter Emily was murdered by her ex-boyfriend 10 months 

P„, ;:::, :, ~~~, ' ago. Please issue a proclamation for Sexual Assault Awareness 
P~", ::::, :::-~g~% Month and send me a copy by email or mail so that I can post it on the 

. rst». '»:. :i, ", ~JR StopDatingViolence. org website. Thank you. 

Sincerely, 

gimpy. . . . . . 
Robert Alan Silverstein Sample Proclamation for Sexual Assault Awareness Month 

WHEREAS, sexual assault affects women, children and men of all racial, cultural and economic 
backgrounds; and 

WHEREAS, in addition to the immediate physical and emotional costs, sexual assault may also 
have associated consequences of post-traumatic stress disorder, substance abuse, depression, 
homelessness, eating disorders and suicide; and 

WHEREAS, sexual assault can be devastating for not only the survivor, but also for the family and 
friends of the survivor; and 

WHEREAS, no one person, organization, agency or community can eliminate sexual assault on 
their own, but we can work together to educate our entire population about what can be done to prevent 
sexual assault, support victim/survivors and their significant others, and increase support for agencies 
providing services to victim/survivors; and 

WHEREAS, Sexual Assault Awareness Month provides an excellent opportunity for citizens to leam 
mors about preventing sexual violence; 

NOW THEREFORE be it, Resolved, That I, 

April, 2010, as Sexual Assault Awareness Month in 
, do hereby proclaim the month of 


	Special Meeting Agenda 
	Minutes
	03/16/10 Work Session
	03/16/10 Board Meeting

	Resolution No. 2010-04, Lakeside Park Improvements
	Nusicance Abatement
	138 & 138 1/2 S. Harris Road
	140 S. Harris Road

	1095 & 1370 E. Michigan Ave. - Nuisance Abatement
	Mailing Request for Brush & Recycling Changes
	2010 Golf Rates
	Sexual Assualt Awareness Month Proclamation




